
 

 

 

 
 
 

Wednesday, 16 November 
2022 

10.30 am or on the rise of Governance 
and Constitution Committee, whichever 

is later. 
 

Meeting of 
Audit Committee 

Sadler Road 
Winsford 
CW7 2FQ 

 
 

Contact Officer: 
Emilie Salkeld 

Democratic Services 
 

Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service, Clemonds Hey, Winsford, Cheshire, CW7 2UA 
 

Tel: 01606 868304 
E-mail: emilie.salkeld@cheshirefire.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
 
 

Cheshire Fire Authority 
Notes for Members of the Public 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Attendance at Meetings 
The Cheshire Fire Authority welcomes and encourages members of the public to be at its 
meetings and Committees. You are requested to remain quiet whilst the meeting is taking place 
and to enter and leave the meeting room as quickly and quietly as possible. 
 
All meetings of the Authority are held at the Training Centre, Sadler Road, Winsford.  If you plan 
to attend please report first to the Reception Desk where you will be asked to sign in and will be 
given a visitors pass.  You should return your pass to the Reception Desk when you leave the 
building. There are some car parking spaces available on site for visitors at the front of the 
building.  Please do not park in spaces reserved for Fire Service personnel. 
 
If you feel there might be particular problems with access to the building or car parking please 
contact the Reception Desk at Sadler Road Winsford Tel (01606) 868700. 
 
Access to Information 
Copies of the Agenda will be available at the meeting.  A copy can also be obtained from the 
contact officer named on the front of the Agenda. Alternatively, the Agenda and individual 
reports are available on the Authority’s website (www.cheshirefire.gov.uk) 
 
The Agenda is usually divided into two parts. Most business is dealt with in the first part which is 
open to the public. On some occasions some business may need to be considered in the 
second part of the agenda, in private session. There are limited reasons which allow this to take 
place, e.g. as confidential information is being considered about an individual, or commercial 
information is being discussed. 
 
This agenda is available in large print, Braille, audio CD or in community languages upon 
request by contacting; Telephone: 01606868414 or email: equalities@cheshirefire.gov.uk 
 
Recording of Meetings 
The Authority audio records its meetings. Please contact Democratic Services for a copy of the 
recording via DemocraticServices@cheshirefire.gov.uk.  The recordings are not kept 
indefinitely. 
Fire Evacuation 
If the Fire Alarm sounds you should make you way to the nearest exit as quickly as possible and 
leave the building.  Please follow any instructions from staff about evacuation routes. 
 

mailto:equalities@cheshirefire.gov.uk


 

 

 
MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
WEDNESDAY, 16 NOVEMBER 2022 
Time : 10.30 am 
Lecture Theatre - Training Centre, Sadler Road, Winsford, Cheshire CW7 
2FQ 
 
 

AGENDA 
  
1 Introductions and apologies  

 
 

 
2 Purpose of the Committee  

 
The responsibilities of the Committee are set out below: 
  
To monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of the external audit of 
the Authority’s services and functions and to:- 

                    i.          Approve the nature and scope of the external audit of 
the Authority’s services and functions; 

  
                   ii.          Consider external audit reports; 

  
                 iii.          Monitor the Authority’s response to the external 

auditor’s findings and the implementation of external 
audit recommendations. 

  
To monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit 
arrangements and to: - 

                    i.          Approve the annual Internal Audit Plan; 
  

                   ii.          Monitor progress against the Plan through the receipt of 
periodic progress reports and an annual Internal Audit 
Report; 

  
                 iii.          Consider any internal audit that provides less than 

substantial assurance and/or includes any high or 
critical risk ratings;  

  
                 iv.          Monitor the response to Internal Audit Reports and the 

implementation of recommendations.  
 

 

 
3 Internal Audit - role, Annual Plan and update  

 
The Internal Auditor will lead a discussion about the role of internal 
audit and the items that are attached to the agenda.  
 

(Pages 5 - 22) 

 
4 External Audit - role, Annual Plan and update  

 
(Pages 23 - 82) 



 

 

The External Auditor will lead a discussion about the role of 
external audit and the items that are attached to the agenda. 
  

5 Future Work Programme of the Committee  
 
This item is intended to allow the Committee to consider and agree 
the future work programme. 
 

(Pages 83 - 84) 

 
6 Training and Development for Committee members  

 
This item is intended to allow the Committee to consider and agree 
the training and development requirement of the members of the 
Committee. 
 

(Verbal Report) 

 
7 Internal Audit Report - Business Continuity Planning Review  

 
(Pages 85 - 100) 

 
8 Internal Audit - Progress Report Quarter 2 2022-23  

 
(Pages 101 -110) 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Charter 

Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

 
 

  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service  

 

2 

 

 

Contents 
1 Introduction & Background 

2 Standard 1000 - Purpose, Authority and Responsibility 

3 Standard 1100 - Independence and Objectivity 

4 Standard 1200 - Proficiency and Due Professional Care 

5 Standard 1300 - Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 

6 Standard 2000 - Managing the Internal Audit Activity 

7 Standard 2100 - Nature of Work 

8 Standard 2200 - Engagement Planning 

9 Standard 2300 - Performing the Engagement 

10 Standard 2400 - Communicating Results 

11 Standard 2500 - Monitoring Progress 

12 Definitions 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 6



 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service  

 

3 

 

1 Introduction & Background 
The Internal Audit Charter is mandated through the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (2016) and 

is a formal document that defines the internal audit activity’s purpose, authority and responsibility. The 

internal audit charter establishes the internal audit activity’s position within the organisation; authorises 

access to records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance of engagements; 

and defines the scope of internal audit activities. 

This Charter is structured around the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (2016) and also the CIPFA 

Local Government Application Note (LGAN). 

 
MIAA confirms ongoing compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 
2 Standard 1000 - Purpose, Authority and Responsibility 
Internal auditing is “an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value 

and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by 

bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 

management, control and governance processes1 ”. 

The provision of assurance services is the primary role for internal audit in the Public Sector.   This 

role requires the internal auditor to provide an independent opinion based on an objective assessment 

of the framework of governance, risk management and control.  The main purpose of internal audit 

activity within the Public Sector is therefore to provide the Accountable or Accounting Officer with an 

objective evaluation of, and opinion on, the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s 

framework of governance, risk management and control. The Director of Internal Audit’s opinions is a 

 
1 1 The Definition of Internal Auditing Copyright © 2009 by The Institute of Internal Auditors, Inc., 247 Maitland Avenue, 
Altamonte Springs, Florida 32710-4201 U.S.A. Reproduced with permission. 

 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards – Attribute Standards 

1000 - Purpose, Authority and Responsibility 

1100 - Independence and Objectivity 

1200 - Proficiency and Due Professional Care 

1300 - Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards – Performance Standards 

2000 - Managing the Internal Audit Activity 

2100 - Nature of Work 

2200 - Engagement Planning 

2300 - Performing the Engagement 

2400 - Communicating Results 

2500 - Monitoring Progress 

2600 – Communicating the acceptance of risks. 

Page 7



 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service  

 

4 

 

key element of the framework of assurance that the Accountable or Accounting Officer needs to inform 

the completion of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS).  

Internal audit also provides an independent and objective consultancy service which is advisory in 

nature, and generally performed at the specific request of the organisation. Such consultancy work is 

separate from but contributes to the opinion which internal audit provides on risk management control 

and governance.  When performing consulting services, the internal auditor will maintain objectivity 

and not take on management responsibility. 

The above functions drive MIAA’s Mission Statement “To support improved public service outcomes 

through a world class shared service for audit, assurance, challenge and solutions”. 

Assurance Reviews will provide individual audit opinions to support the annual Director of Internal 

Audit Opinion. Formal agreement will be sought for the provision of third party assurances to other 

bodies in respect of any services provided by the organisation.   

In accordance with the organisation’s Financial Regulations, Internal Auditors will (without necessarily 

giving prior notice) have access to all records (including those of a confidential nature) and employees 

of the organisation. 

3 Standard 1100 - Independence and Objectivity 
The internal audit activity must be independent, and internal auditors must be objective in performing 

their work.  To achieve the degree of independence necessary to effectively carry out the 

responsibilities of the internal audit activity, the Director of Internal Audit will have direct and 

unrestricted access to senior management and the Audit Committee.  

The Director of Internal Audit will confirm to the Audit Committee, at least annually, the organisational 

independence of the internal audit activity. 

The Director of Internal Audit will report functionally to the Audit Committee and establish effective 

communication with, and have free and unfettered access to, the Accountable Officer and the Chair 

of the Audit Committee.  This will include communicating and interacting directly with the Audit 

Committee. 

Internal audit activity will be free from interference in determining the scope of internal auditing, 

performing work and communicating results. Internal auditors will have an impartial, unbiased attitude 

and avoid any conflict of interest. Conflicts of interest may arise where an auditor provides services 

other than internal audit to the organisation. Steps will be taken to avoid or manage transparently and 

openly such conflicts of interest, so that there is no real or perceived threat or impairment to 

independence in performing the audit role. 

All internal auditors will complete an annual declaration of interest identifying possible conflicts of 

interest and the actions taken to mitigate them. This process, and its outcomes, will be communicated 

to the Audit Committee annually through the Director of Internal Audit Opinion and Annual Report. 

MIAA will also periodically review the specific audit manager assigned to the organisation to ensure 

that both parties are satisfied that relationships remain independent and objective. 

If independence or objectivity is impaired in fact or appearance, the details of the impairment will be 

disclosed to appropriate parties.  The nature of the disclosure will depend upon the impairment. 

 

 

Page 8



 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service  

 

5 

 

4 Standard 1200 - Proficiency and Due Professional Care 
Engagements will be performed with proficiency and due professional care.  Internal auditors will 

possess the knowledge, skills, and other competencies needed to perform their individual 

responsibilities. The internal audit activity collectively will possess or obtain the knowledge, skills and 

other competencies needed to perform its responsibilities.  The Director of Internal Audit is 

professionally qualified and is responsible for ensuring access to the full range of knowledge, skills, 

qualifications and experience to meet the requirements of the Internal Audit Standards. MIAA internal 

auditors will ensure Continuing Professional Development and compliance with professional 

standards. 

Internal auditors will apply the care and skill expected of a reasonably prudent and competent internal 

auditor.  Due professional care does not imply infallibility. 

5 Standard 1300 - Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 
The Director of Audit will develop and maintain a quality assurance and improvement programme that 

covers all aspects of the internal audit activity.  The quality assurance and improvement programme 

will include both internal and external assessments. 

• Internal assessment will include; 

o Ongoing monitoring of the performance of the internal audit activity; and 

o Periodic self-assessments or assessment by other persons within the organisation with 

sufficient knowledge of internal audit practices. 

External assessments will also be conducted at least once every five years by a qualified, independent 

reviewer or review team from outside the organisation. The results of external quality reviews and any 

consequent improvement plans will to be reported to the Accountable/Accounting Officer and Audit 

Committee.  

6 Standard 2000 - Managing the Internal Audit Activity 
The Director of Internal Audit will develop and maintain an Internal Audit strategy designed to meet 

the main purpose of the internal audit activity and its service provision needs. This strategy will 

advocate a systematic and prioritised review, outlining the resources and skills required to meet the 

assurance needs of the Accountable/Accounting Officer and Audit Committee. The strategy will take 

into account the relative risk maturity of the organisation, taking due regard of the Assurance 

Framework. 

The Director of Internal Audit will establish risk based plans to determine the priorities of the internal 

audit activity consistent with the organisation’s goals. 

The Director of Internal Audit will include in the internal audit strategy the approach to using other 

sources of internal and external assurance. Periodic plans will include any work associated with 

placing reliance upon such work. 

The Director of Internal Audit will agree the strategy and periodic plans with the 

Accountable/Accounting Officer and Audit Committee. 

Where the Director of Internal Audit believes that the level of agreed resources will prevent the 

Accountable/Accounting Officer being provided with an opinion on the overall adequacy and 

Page 9



 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service  

 

6 

 

effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control, the 

consequences will be brought to the attention of the Audit Committee. 

The Director of Internal Audit will agree arrangements for interim reporting to the 

Accountable/Accounting Officer and Audit Committee in the course of the year and produce an annual 

report that incorporates his opinion. 

The Director of Internal Audit will provide to the Accountable/Accounting Officer an opinion on the 

overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management 

and control, timed to support the Annual Governance Statement. 

7 Standard 2100 - Nature of Work 
The internal audit activity will evaluate and contribute to the improvement of governance, risk 

management and control processes, using a systematic and disciplined approach. 

The internal audit activity will also evaluate the potential for the occurrence of fraud and consider how 

the organisation manages fraud risk. CIPFA has issued a Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of 

Fraud and Corruption. While compliance with the code is voluntary, CIPFA strongly recommends that 

it is used as the basis for assessment of how an authority manages its fraud risk. The Director of 

Internal Audit should be notified of all suspected or detected fraud, corruption or impropriety in order 

to inform the annual opinion and any forward risk based plans. 

The Director of Internal Audit will also liaise with the organisation’s external auditors and other review 

bodies to facilitate the effective co-ordination of audit resources and assurances. 

8 Standard 2200 - Engagement Planning 
The Director of Internal Audit will establish a risk based Internal Audit Plan in conjunction with the 

client and with the agreement of the Audit Committee. The plan will set out the priorities for Internal 

Audit activity, consistent with the organisations goals and objectives. 

Internal auditors will develop and document a terms of reference for each engagement, including the 

engagement’s objectives, scope, timing and resource allocations, based on an evaluation of the nature 

and complexity of each engagement, time constraints and available resources.  A work plan will be 

developed and documented that achieves the engagement objectives. 

Internal audit will meet regularly with the external auditor to consult on audit plans and discuss matters 

of mutual interest.  

9 Standard 2300 - Performing the Engagement 
Internal audit will identify, analyse, evaluate and document sufficient information to achieve the 

engagement’s objectives. Internal auditors will base conclusions and engagement results on 

appropriate analyses and evaluations.  Internal auditors will document relevant information to support 

the conclusions and engagement results. 

Engagements will be properly supervised to ensure objectives are achieved, quality is assured and 

staff are developed. 

10 Standard 2400 - Communicating Results 

Page 10



 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service  

 

7 

 

Internal auditors will communicate the engagement results with appropriate parties, including the 

engagement’s objectives and scope, as well as applicable conclusions, recommendations and action 

plans 

Working with the organisation, the Director of Internal Audit will ensure that communications are 

accurate, objective, clear, concise, constructive, complete and timely. 

The Director of internal Audit will deliver an annual internal audit opinion and report that can be used 

by the organisation to inform its Annual Governance Statement. 

The annual internal audit opinion will conclude on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 

organisations framework of governance, risk management and control. 

The annual report will incorporate; 

• The opinion; 

• A summary of the work that supports the opinion; and  

• A statement on conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and the results of 

the quality assurance and improvement programme. 

11 Standard 2500 - Monitoring Progress 
The Director of Internal Audit will establish and maintain a follow-up process to monitor that 

management actions have been effectively implemented or that senior management has accepted the 

risk of not taking action. This will be operated to support the organisation in ensuring the 

implementation of actions, and reporting progress to the Audit Committee. 

12 Standard 2600 - Communication the Acceptance of Risks 
When the Director of Internal Audit believes that senior management has accepted a level of residual 

risk that may be unacceptable to the organisation, the Director of Internal Audit will discuss the matter 

with senior management. If the decision regarding residual risk is not resolved, the Director of Internal 

Audit will report the matter to the Audit Committee for resolution. 

Code of Ethics 

MIAA will operate within the definition of Internal Auditing and ensure that the Code of Ethics (Institute 

of Internal Auditors, 2017) underpins the internal audit services provided to the organisation. 

INTEGRITY OBJECTIVITY 

• Honesty, diligence & responsibility 

• Legal & professional disclosure 

• Contribution to legitimate & ethical 
objectives 

• Unbiased assessment 

• Relationships 

• Not subject to undue influence 

• Conflict of interest disclosure 

CONFIDENTIALITY COMPETENCY 

• Prudence in use & protection of 
information 

• Knowledge, skills and experience 

Page 11



 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service  

 

8 

 

 

13 Definitions 

 

  

• Not use information for personal gain or 
contrary to legal requirements 

• Compliance with standards and professional 
practice 

• Continuous improvement 

Board The Fire and Rescue Authority with overall responsibility for governance. 

Accountable Officer Officer responsible and accountable for funds entrusted to the organisation. 

Audit Committee The committee with overall responsibility for overseeing the establishment of 
an effective system of governance, risk management and control across the 
organisation’s activities and among all those charged with governance, fulfilling 
the principles of good governance. 

Director of Internal 
Audit 

Acts as the Chief Audit Executive as the independent corporate executive with 
overall responsibility for internal audit.   

Senior Management The overall Senior Lead agreed by the organisation for each audit engagement. 

Page 12



 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service  

 

9 

 

 

Anne-marie Harrop 
Engagement Lead 

Tel: 07920 150313 

Email: Anne-marie.harrop@miaa.nhs.uk 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service
Internal Audit Plan (FINAL) approved by Fire Authority 27th April 2022

2022/2023

P
age 15



Contents

1. Executive Summary

2. Transforming Internal Audit

3. Internal Audit Risk Assessment

4. Internal Audit Plan On A Page

5. Operational Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

MIAA Assurance - provision of cost effective assurance (governance, risk and control) 
Insight (advice and best practice) and foresight (supporting clients on up and coming issues). 

These services are delivered in partnership with you to ensure they are personal and 
responsive, ensuring the best possible customer experience.

0151 285 4500

miaa.admin@miaa.nhs.uk

www.miaa.nhs.uk

@MIAANHS

P
age 16



1 Executive Summary 1.4 Your Internal Audit Team
1.2 Your Risk Assessment
A strong risk assessment underpins the Internal Audit Plan. This
has focused upon your Strategic Risk Register as this represents
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service’s own assessment of the risks
to achieving its strategic objectives.

1.3 Your Internal Audit Plan
Your Internal Audit service includes core assurances, a review of
national and regional risk areas and strategic risks from your Risk
Register. The draft plan is based on an initial risk assessment and
provides indicative coverage for the organisation. The plan will
remain flexible to allow for responses to emerging challenges that
the organisation may face.

We will actively engage across the organisation to ensure we have
a full and detailed understanding of your risks and can ensure we
focus our work to best effect.

MIAA insights, including briefings and events will be integral to your
plan.

Your fees for 2022/23 are £22,700

MIAA Internal Audit Plan 2022/2023cators IF REQUIRED 

Working with you
 Strong relationships 
 In depth knowledge and 

understanding of organisation
 Strong risk assessment
 Tailored plan focused on your 

risks
 Focus on areas for improvement
 Flexible and responsive

 Strong service KPIs and delivery
 Events and Networking
 Advisory support
 Fully compliant External Quality 

Assessment

1.1 Working in partnership with you

MIAA Assurance, providing cost effective assurance, insight and
foresight. These services are delivered in partnership with you to
ensure they are personal and responsive, ensuring the best
possible customer experience.

Anne-marie Harrop
Engagement Manager 
07920 150313
Anne-marie.harrop@miaa.nhs.uk

Louise Cobain
Engagement Lead
07795 564916
Louise.cobain@miaa.nhs.uk

P
age 17



2 Transforming Internal Audit

We have always been quick to respond to changes in our clients 
operating environment and this has been evident in our delivery 
throughout the Covid19 pandemic which saw our teams work with  
flexibility and agility to deliver your internal audit service. 

MIAA Internal Audit Plan 2022/23Indicators IF REQUIRED 

Insights
- Events
- Briefings
- Best Practice
- Benchmarking

Solutions
Support

Internal Audit, Assurance and Solution Plans

Our vision is for MIAA to continue to be a Trusted Advisor through
the retention of personalised, local focus and relationships with the
added benefits provided by an at scale provider.
This is about MIAA continuing to build on its shared services
capability to create a comprehensive offering, which provides
insight and supports transformational change whilst operating
efficiently.
MIAA continue to review and re-engineer our audit service and the
way we provide assurance to meet your needs in the changing
landscape.

Assignment Planning
• Detailed collaborative 

planning sessions 
between MIAA and 
organisational leads 

Fieldwork Delivery
• Dividing work into 

small chunks (sprints) 
to increase focus and 
provide real-time 
challenge and add 
value

• Regular updates and 
rapid escalation

Reporting/Feedback
• Fast feedback –

quick feedback and 
responses to findings

Future Focus
• Iteratively prioritise 

focus based on review 
findings to provide 
further assurance or 
target other areas for 
review

P
age 18



3 Internal Audit Risk Assessment

MIAA Internal Audit Plan 2022/2023cators IF REQUIRED 

Information 
Technology

People & Performance  

Operational 
Compliance 

Governance 
Risk & 
Legality 

Finance, 
& Resources

Your Risk 
Assessment

Collaboration & 
Partnerships

Risk
Management 
Board 

Financial Key 
controls / 
Reserves

Service Desk Review 

Cyber –
Organisation 
Controls  

Information 
Governance

Blue Light 
Collaboration

Training 

Programme 
management 

Pensions 

.

Procurement 

Health & 
wellbeing

The internal audit plan is built from a risk assessment which
has considered national and local system risks and your local
strategic risk assessment, along with our breadth of
experience and understanding of the challenges you face.

A key focus of our strategic risk assessment is understanding
your vision and ensuring that the internal audit plan
contributes to your objectives. This in turn ensures that the
assurances provided are built around your risks.

The initial strategic risk assessment and internal audit risk
assessment has considered:

• Organisation intelligence – including review of your
Strategic Risk Register, Integrated Risk Management
Plan, HMICFRS inspection outcomes and operational
plans and performance.

• Mandated assurance – including core systems
assurances to provide a Head of Internal Audit Opinion
and Public Sector Internal Audit Standards requirements.

• Previous Internal Audit coverage – we have reviewed
your previous Internal Audit coverage to ensure the
proposed plan does not duplicate coverage.

• Follow Up – Internal Audit coverage will also include
follow up of outstanding internal audit actions.

Risks underlined are currently 
prioritised in your 2022/2023 

Plan

Station 
Management 

Safeguarding  

Performance 
Management

ESMCP

Critical 
Apps

Payroll 

Capital 

Committee 
Effectiveness

HMICFRS

Professional 
Standards

Equipment 
Maintenance

Thematic 
operational audit

M365 rollout Business 
Continuity

P
age 19



4 Your plan on a Page

• Risk Assessment of the external environment, system 
and organisation (including the Strategic Risk Register 
and Integrated Risk Management Plan).

• Engagement of Senior Management Team to influence 
the plan  Use of MIAA’s client risk database to inform 
planning.

• Coverage of Critical Business Systems to support 
organisation’s objectives through the strategic internal 
audit plan.

• Provision of sufficient resources and expertise.

• Compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS).

.

MIAA Internal Audit Plan 2022/23Indicators IF REQUIRED 

Planning Approach Your Plan Outcomes

The outcome of your risk assessment is summarised below:

Organisational Reviews
Provision of assurances across core and risk based reviews:

• Financial Systems including Reserves
• Blue Light Collaboration
• Business Continuity
• M365 Rollout / deployment
• Risk Management Board

Head of 
Internal Audit 

Opinion to 
inform the 

AGS

Assignment 
assurance 

levels

Recommendations, 
advice, and guidance 
to enhance the control 
environment

Insights through 
briefings, thought 
leadership events and 
benchmarking.

Follow Up and Contingency 

P
age 20



5 Operational Internal Audit Plan 22/23

MIAA Internal Audit Plan 2022/2023cators IF REQUIRED 

Review & Scope Strategic Risk Ref / Rationale Audit Days Planned Delivery Lead

Governance , Risk and Legality 

Risk Management Board: Attendance and contribution to Risk
Management Board

Management Request 1 Q1 – Q4 Director of Governance & Commissioning 

Finance & Sustainability

Key Financial Controls including Reserves: Annual evaluation of
the key financial controls. We will also undertake additional work
on the management and use of reserves/effectiveness of PBB
process.

Core Assurance 15 Q3 Treasurer / Head of Finance

Operational Compliance 

Business Continuity: To ensure that CFRS has adequate business
continuity plans in place to respond to and recover from a
significant incident or loss of service. We will focus on IT loss and
include arrangements for NW Fire Control.

Management Request 10 Q1 Head of Operational Policy and 
Assurance 

People and Performance

Blue Light Collaboration: The audit will focus on the effectiveness
of performance management, governance and cost sharing
arrangements.

Risk Map 14 Q2 Deputy Chief Fire Officer /  Director of 
Governance & Commissioning 

Information and Technology

Microsoft365 Delivery: Evaluation of the deployment and rollout of
M365. This will include consideration of the approach to
information management and impact on working practices.

Risk Map 10 Q2 Director of Governance & Commissioning 

Follow up & Contingency

Follow up and Contingency PSIAS requirement 10  Q1 – Q4 Director of Governance & Commissioning 

Planning & Reporting

Planning, Management, Reporting & Meetings PSIAS requirement 10 Q1 – Q4 Director of Governance & Commissioning 

P
age 21



Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
Our work was completed in accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and
conforms with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal
Auditing.

Limitations
Our work does not provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not
exist. Responsibility for a sound system of internal controls and the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with management and work performed by
internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses in internal
controls, nor relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity. Effective and
timely implementation of our recommendations by management is important for the
maintenance of a reliable internal control system.

Reports prepared by MIAA are prepared for your sole use and no responsibility is taken
by MIAA or the auditors to any director or officer in their individual capacity. No
responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared for, and is
not intended for, any other purpose and a person who is not a party to the agreement for
the provision of Internal Audit and shall not have any rights under the Contracts (Rights of
Third Parties) Act 1999.

P
age 22



P
age 23

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 24

mailto:michael.green@uk.gt.com
mailto:liz.a.Luddington@uk.gt.com
mailto:chelsey.l.taylor@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

P
age 25

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/97b5a417-d9bf-4649-b3c3-3ae49a350fe7/FRC-AQR-Major-Local-Audits_October-2021.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 26



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 27



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 28



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 29



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 30



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 31



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 32



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 33



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 34

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0fa69c03-49ec-49ae-a8c9-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-540_Revised-December-2018_final.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

P
age 35



Commercial in confidence

P
age 36



Commercial in confidence

P
age 37



Commercial in confidence

16

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 38



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

Ethical Standard (revised 

2019)

P
age 39

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 40



Commercial in confidence

19

Function Benefits for you

Data extraction Providing us with your financial 

information is made easier

File sharing An easy-to-use, ISO 27001 certified, 

purpose-built file sharing tool

Project 

management

Effective management and oversight of 

requests and responsibilities

Data analytics Enhanced assurance from access to 

complete data populations

P
age 41



Commercial in confidence

20

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 42



Commercial in confidence

✓Page 43



Commercial in confidence

In progress

In progress

In progress

P
age 44



P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 47



Commercial in confidence

P
age 48

mailto:michael.green@uk.gt.com
mailto:liz.a.Luddington@uk.gt.com
mailto:chelsey.l.taylor@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 49



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 50



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 51



Commercial in confidence

P
age 52



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 53



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 54



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 55



Commercial in confidence

Land and 

Building 

valuations –

£95m

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 56



Commercial in confidence

Net pension liability 

– £604m •

•



















P
age 57



Commercial in confidence

Net pension liability –

£602m (continued) •

•

•

•

•









P
age 58



Commercial in confidence

P
age 59



Commercial in confidence

P
age 60



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 61



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 62



Commercial in confidence

P
age 63



Commercial in confidence

P
age 64



Commercial in confidence

P
age 65



Commercial in confidence

Transparency report 2020 
(grantthornton.co.uk)

P
age 66

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2020.pdf


P
age 67



Commercial in confidence







P
age 68



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

P
age 69



Commercial in confidence

P
age 70



Commercial in confidence

P
age 71



Commercial in confidence

Independent auditor's report to the members of Cheshire Fire Authority 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Cheshire Fire Authority (the ‘Authority’) for the year ended 31 March 2022, which comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 

and include the firefighters' pension fund financial statements comprising the Fund Account and the Net Assets Statement. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their 

preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2022 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) (“the Code of Audit 

Practice”) approved by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 

statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including 

the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Treasurer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are required to draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions 

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to continue as a going concern.

In our evaluation of the Treasurer’s conclusions, and in accordance with the expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of practice on local authority accounting in the United 

Kingdom 2021/22 that the Authority’s financial statements shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we considered the inherent risks associated with the continuation of services provided 

by the Authority. In doing so we had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 

2020) on the application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We assessed the reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the Authority and the Authority’s 

disclosures over the going concern period.

P
age 72



Commercial in confidence

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the 

Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Treasurer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. The 

responsibilities of the Treasurer with respect to going concern are described in the ‘Responsibilities of the Authority, the Treasurer and Those Charged with Governance for the financial 

statements’ section of this report.

Other information

The Treasurer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the financial statements, and our 

auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 

the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identi fy such material inconsistencies or apparent material 

misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we 

have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in April 2020 on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to 

consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with ‘delivering good governance in Local Government Framework 2016 Edition’ published by CIPFA and SOLACE or is 

misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and 

controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our knowledge of the Authority, the other information published together with the 

financial statements in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

P
age 73



Commercial in confidence

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at 

the conclusion of the audit; or; 

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Treasurer and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements

As explained in the Statement of Responsibilities [set out on page 16], the Authority is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that 

one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Treasurer. The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of 

Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 

2021/22, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Treasurer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Treasurer is responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a go ing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention by government that the services provided by the Authority will no longer be provided.

The Authority is Those Charged with Governance. Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 

description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material 

misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that material misstatements in the financial statements may 

not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the ISAs (UK). 

P
age 74

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


Commercial in confidence

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below: 

• We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Authority and determined that the most significant, which are directly relevant to 

specific assertions in the financial statements, are those related to the reporting frameworks (international accounting standards as interpreted and adapted by the CIPFA/LASAAC 

Code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22, The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the Local 

Government Act 2003. We also identified the following additional regulatory frameworks in respect of the firefighters pension fund, the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, the 

Firefighters’ Pension Scheme (England) Regulations 2014 and the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme (England) Order 2006.

• We enquired of senior officers and the Authority, concerning the Authority’s policies and procedures relating to:

− the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;

− the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

− the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations.

• We enquired of senior officers, internal audit and the Authority, whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or whether they had any 

knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

• We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating officers’ incentives and opportunities for 

manipulation of the financial statements. This included the evaluation of the risk of management override of controls. We determined that the principal risks were in relation to:

− non-routine journal entries, and key accounting estimates around the valuation of land and buildings and the pension liability. 

• Our audit procedures involved:

− evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that the Treasurer has in place to prevent and detect fraud;

− journal entry testing, with a focus on non-routine transactions;

− challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting estimates in respect of the valuation of land and buildings and the pension 

liability;

− assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement item.

• These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error and detecting irregularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting those that result 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is 

from events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it.

• Our assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the engagement team included consideration of the engagement team's.

− understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar nature and complexity through appropriate training and participation

− knowledge of the local government sector

P
age 75



Commercial in confidence

− understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the Authority including:

− the provisions of the applicable legislation

− guidance issued by CIPFA/LASAAC and SOLACE

− the applicable statutory provisions.

• In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding of:

− the Authority’s operations, including the nature of its income and expenditure and its services and of its objectives and strategies to understand the classes of transactions, 

account balances, expected financial statement disclosures and business risks that may result in risks of material misstatement.

− the Authority's control environment, including the policies and procedures implemented by the Authority to ensure compliance with the requirements of the financial reporting 

framework.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception – the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not been able to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2022.  

Our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources is not yet complete. The outcome of our work will be reported in our 

commentary on the Authority’s arrangements in our Auditor’s Annual Report. If we identify any significant weaknesses in these arrangements, these will be reported by exception in a further 

auditor’s report. We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on our opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Responsibilities of the Authority

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in i ts use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and 

governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

P
age 76



Commercial in confidence

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in December 2021. This guidance sets 

out the arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. When reporting on these arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to structure their commentary 

on arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:

• Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services; 

• Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and 

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for each of these three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support our risk 

assessment and commentary in our Auditor’s Annual Report. In undertaking our work, we consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in 

arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – Delay in certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for Cheshire Fire Authority  for the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed:

• our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and issued our Auditor’s Annual Report’

• the work necessary to issue our Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) Component Assurance statement for the Authority for the year ended 31 March 2022.

We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 [and as set out in paragraph 43 of the 

Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited]. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 

Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 

responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Signature:

Michael Green, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

Manchester

Date: TBC

P
age 77



Commercial in confidence

P
age 78



Commercial in confidence

vii. Except as disclosed in the financial statements:

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent

b. none of the assets of the Authority has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring items requiring separate disclosure.

viii. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards 

and the Code.

ix. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been 

adjusted or disclosed.

x. We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The Authority’s financial 

statements have been amended for these misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

xi. Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

xii. We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

xiii. We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that the Authority’s financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and have not 

identified any material uncertainties related to going concern on the grounds that : 

a. the nature of the Authority means that, notwithstanding any intention to cease its operations in their current form, it will continue to be appropriate to adopt the going concern 

basis of accounting because, in such an event, services it performs can be expected to continue to be delivered by related public authorities and preparing the financial 

statements on a going concern basis will still provide a faithful representation of the items in the financial statements

b. the financial reporting framework permits the entry to prepare its financial statements on the basis of the presumption set out under a) above; and 

c. the Authority’s system of internal control has not identified any events or conditions relevant to going concern.

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial statements 

Information Provided

xiv. We have provided you with:

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the Authority’s financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters;

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; and

access to persons within the Authority via remote arrangements from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

P
age 79



Commercial in confidence

xv. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is aware.

xvi. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements.

xvii. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

xviii. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the Authority and involves:

a. management;

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

xix. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, 

analysts, regulators or others.

xx. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing 

financial statements.

xxi. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Authority's related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

xxii. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement

xxiii. We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Authority's risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any 

significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS.

Narrative Report

xxiv. The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the Authority's financial and operating performance over the period covered by the Authority’s financial 

statements.

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Authority at its meeting on 28 September 2022.

P
age 80



Commercial in confidence

Councillor Rudd

Chair of Cheshire Fire Authority

28 September 2022

Dear Sir

Under the 2020 Code of Audit Practice, for relevant authorities other 

than local NHS bodies we are required to issue our Auditor’s Annual 

Report no later than 30 September or, where this is not possible, issue 

an audit letter setting out the reasons for delay. 

As a result of the ongoing pandemic, and the impact it has had on both 

preparers and auditors of accounts to complete their work as quickly as 

would normally be expected, the National Audit Office has updated its 

guidance to auditors to allow us to postpone completion of our work on 

arrangements to secure value for money and focus our resources firstly 

on the delivery of our opinions on the financial statements. This is 

intended to help ensure as many as possible could be issued in line 

with national timetables and legislation.

As a result, we have therefore not yet issued our Auditor’s Annual 

Report, including our commentary on arrangements to secure value for 

money. We now expect to publish our report no later than 31 December 

2022.

For the purposes of compliance with the 2020 Code, this letter 

constitutes the required audit letter explaining the reasons for delay.

Yours faithfully

Michael Green

Director

P
age 81



P
age 82



 

  

  AUDIT COMMITTEE 2022-23 
Meeting 
Date:  25 January 2023 19 April 2023 

Report 
Deadline 9 January 2023 30 March 2023 

Agenda 
Deadline 17 January 2023 11 April 2023 

1 MIAA Internal Audit Progress Report Q3 2022-23 MIAA Internal Audit Annual Report 2022-23 
2 GT External Audit final report 2022-23 MIAA Head of Internal Audit Opinion 2022-23 

3  MIAA Internal Audit Annual Plan 2023-24 – verbal 
report 

MIAA Internal Audit annual plan 2023-24 

4   GT External Audit annual plan 2023-24 
5     

NOTES   

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 5



 

  AUDIT COMMITTEE 2023-24 
Meeting 
Date:  5 July 2023 8 November 2023 24 January 2024 17 April 2024 

Report 
Deadline 19 June 2023 23 October 2023 8 January 2024 1 April 2024 

Agenda 
Deadline 27 June 2023 31 October 2023 16 January 2024 9 April 2024 

1 
MIAA Internal Audit Progress 

Report Q1 2023-24 
MIAA Internal Audit Progress 

Report Q2 2023-24   
 

MIAA Internal Audit Progress 
Report Q3 2023-24 

GT External Audit annual 
plan 2024-25 

2 
AL/ 
PV 

Annual self-assessment 
– consideration and 
discussion  

AL/ 
PV 

Annual self-assessment 
– draft report to the Fire 
Authority 

MIAA Internal Audit annual 
plan 2024-25 

  

3     GT External Audit annual 
report 2023-24 

  

4         
NOTES  

 
   

P
age 84



CHESHIRE FIRE AUTHORITY 

MEETING OF: AUDIT COMMITTEE 
DATE: 16 NOVEMBER 2022 
REPORT OF: TREASURER 
AUTHOR: PAUL VAUGHAN 

 

SUBJECT: INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT – BUSINESS 
CONTINUITY PLANNING REVIEW  

Purpose of Report 

1. The report presents an internal audit report on Business Continuity Planning 
for Member consideration. 

Recommended: That Members 

[1]  note the internal audit report on Business Continuity Planning. 

Background 

2. The Authority is required under statute to have an internal audit function. It 
has engaged the Mersey Internal Audit Agency (MIAA) to carry out this 
function on its behalf. 

Information 

3. In accordance with the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23, MIAA has 
carried out an audit on the Authority’s Business Continuity Plan.  

4. The draft report on this audit is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. A 
member of the MIAA team will attend the meeting to present the report to 
Members.  

Financial Implications 

5. There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Legal Implications 

6. There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

7. There are no equality and diversity implications arising from this report. 

Page 85

Agenda Item 7



Environmental Implications 

8. There are no environmental implications arising from this report. 

CONTACT: DONNA LINTON, GOVERNANCE AND CORPORATE PLANNING 
MANAGER 
TEL [01606] 868804 
 

Page 86



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Business Continuity Planning Review  
Final Assignment Report 2022/23  
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

Report Ref: 302CFRS_2223_004 

Date of Issue: September 2022 

 

 
 

  

Page 87



Business Continuity Planning Review 
302CFRS_2223_004 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-4 Rev 1                                              2 

 

Contents 
1 Executive Summary 

2 Engagement Objectives and Scope 

3 Detailed Findings and Recommendations 

 

Appendix A: Assurance Definitions and Risk Classifications  

 

Limitations  

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during our internal 

audit work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that 

exist, or of all the improvements that may be required. Whilst every care has been taken to 

ensure that the information in this report is as accurate as possible, based on the information 

provided and documentation reviewed, no complete guarantee or warranty can be given with 

regards to the advice and information contained herein. Our work does not provide absolute 

assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not exist.   

Responsibility for a sound system of internal controls and the prevention and detection of 

fraud and other irregularities rests with management and work performed by internal audit 

should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses in internal controls, nor 

relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity. Effective and timely 

implementation of our recommendations by management is important for the maintenance of 

a reliable internal control system.  

Reports prepared by MIAA are prepared for your sole use and no responsibility is taken by 

MIAA or the auditors to any director or officer in their individual capacity. No responsibility to 

any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, 

any other purpose and a person who is not a party to the agreement for the provision of 

Internal Audit and shall not have any rights under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 

1999.  

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

Our work was completed in accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  

Page 88



Business Continuity Planning Review 
302CFRS_2223_004 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-4 Rev 1                                              3 

Report Distribution 

Name Title 

Mark Cashin Chief Fire Officer 

Alex Waller Deputy Chief Fire Officer 

Paul Binyon Assistant Chief Fire Officer 

Andrew Leadbetter Director of Commissioning and Governance 

Steve Barnes Head of Operational Policy & Assurance 

Tony O’Dwyer Group Manager - Operational Policy & Assurance 

Ged Basson Senior Operations Manager – North West Fire 

Control 

Tam Blair Station Manager - Operational Policy & Planning 

Paul Vaughan Treasurer 

Chris Astall Planning, Performance and Risk Officer 

Louise Willis Planning, Performance and Risk Manager 

Audit Team 

Acknowledgement and Further Information 

MIAA would like to thank all staff for their co-operation and assistance in completing this 

review. This report has been prepared as commissioned by the organisation and is for your 

sole use. If you have any queries regarding this review, please contact the Audit Manager.  

To discuss any other issues then please contact the Director. MIAA would be grateful if you 

could complete a short survey using the link below to provide us with valuable feedback to 

support us in continuing to provide the best service to you. 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/MIAA_Client_Feedback_Survey  

Name Contact Details  

Andrew McKenzie Andrew.mckenzie@miaa.nhs.uk 07584190721 

Anne-Marie Harrop Anne-Marie.harrop@miaa.nhs.uk 07920150313 

Page 89

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/MIAA_Client_Feedback_Survey
mailto:Andrew.mckenzie@miaa.nhs.uk


Business Continuity Planning Review 
302CFRS_2223_004 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-4 Rev 1                                              4 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 Objective 

The overall objective of this review was to provide assurance that Cheshire Fire and Rescue 

Service (CFRS) has developed and implemented robust Business Continuity Planning (BCP) 

arrangements.  The review also covered arrangements in place for Northwest Fire Control 

and an evaluation of the assurance reporting arrangements for BCP within Northwest Fire 

Control (NWFC). 

1.2 Opinion 

Substantial Assurance There is a good system of internal control 

designed to meet the system objectives, 

and that controls are generally being 

applied consistently.  

 

1.3 Key Findings 

The following provides a summary of the key themes. 

 

Sub Objective Key Themes 

Overarching Strategy in place 

for Business Continuity 

planning which sets out roles 

and responsibilities. 

A Business Continuity Plan in 

place that sets out how it will 

plan for, respond to and 

recover from a significant 

incident or loss of services. 

The response plan has been 

approved, is up to date and 

reviewed on a regular basis. 

 

Areas of good practice: 

 

• The current CFRS Business Continuity 

Management (BCM) Policy (updated August 2020 

and due for review August 2022) details how CFRS 

will discharge its statutory duties under the Civil 

Contingencies Act 2004 and align to BS25999-1 

(Business Continuity Management), BS25999-2 

(Business Continuity Self-Assessment).  

• The CFRS Business Continuity Guidance and 

Protocol Document also provides a framework and 

advice for managers across all departments and 

functions within CFRS for developing Business 

Continuity Management (BCM) arrangements and 

plans within their own areas of work.  Roles and 

responsibilities are clearly documented. 

• A Crisis Management Plan (CMP) which has most 

recently been updated March 2022, provides the 

framework for improving the organisations 

resilience to emergencies or crisis interruptions, 

Page 90



Business Continuity Planning Review 
302CFRS_2223_004 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-4 Rev 1                                              5 

Sub Objective Key Themes 

facilitating the recovery of key business processes 

and safeguarding the delivery of vital services. 

• The CMP is monitored and reviewed by the 

Operational Support and Risk Manager on a six-

monthly basis and Risk Management Board review 

the CMP annually. 

• The BCM policy is also supported by the CFRS 

Risk Management Policy (due for review March 

2023).  

• In terms of North West Fire Control (NWFC) the 

overarching service level agreement between 

CFRS and other fire services remains in 

development, however business continuity plans 

for NWFC are shared and communications and 

assurances are provided via quarterly performance 

reports produced by NWFC. 

• CFRS have standard templates for business 

continuity plans which include loss of staff, decision 

and communication milestones, contact details and 

any stakeholder contacts. 

 

Areas requiring improvement 

 

• The current policy requires non-confidential 

aspects of the Business Continuity (BC) plan are 

published on the CFRS intranet, MIAA review of the 

CFRS website highlighted the BC plan is not 

currently available. MIAA recommends non 

confidential details are published on the website 

and intranet, – Low risk recommendation 3. 

 

A formal risk assessment 

exists for each provided 

service that directly takes 

Business Continuity Planning 

into consideration. 

Areas of good practice: 

 

• MIAA review highlighted evidence of annual review 

of overall CFRS Crisis Management Plan (CMP) is 

undertaken. The current plan was updated in March 

2022.  

• All plans are supported by risk assessments which 

are undertaken using the CFRS risk management 

Page 91



Business Continuity Planning Review 
302CFRS_2223_004 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-4 Rev 1                                              6 

Sub Objective Key Themes 

framework. The risk assessments include details of 

recovery time objectives as part of the risk analysis. 

The templates ensure that there is appropriate 

consideration of risks to loss of staff, service and 

the business impact internally and externally.  

 

Business Continuity Plans are 

in place which are reviewed, 

tested, and updated on a 

regular basis. 

 

There are appropriate 

Business Continuity 

arrangements in place for all 

sites. 

Areas of good practice 

 

• MIAA considered evidence detailing arrangements 

specifically in place for a potential loss of 

Information Technology (IT) services (last reviewed 

25th March 2022) and arrangements relating to 

Legal Services (last reviewed 1st July 2022). The 

service conducts internal exercise and incidents to 

test out contingency arrangements and risk 

management. 

• Business Continuity Plans (BCPs) for all Joint 

Corporate Services teams have been reviewed in 

2021/22 and a schedule of review and testing has 

been approved for 2022-23. 

MIAA review of current Business Continuity 

Management documents – NWFC BIA Covid, 

NW7105 and NW 7016 (BCP - reviewed 20th 

February 2022) for NWFC highlighted measures in 

place for significant events. The BCP’s provided by 

NWFC are reviewed by one of the four services 

involved in NWFC.  CFRS will be auditing NWFC 

BC plans during 2022, for example CFRS are in the 

process of reviewing NWFCs Industrial Action 

plans as part of preparedness for potential 

industrial action.  

• MIAA review of CFRS department BCP’s for a 

sample of departments (Fleet services and 

Corporate Communication & Engagement) 

highlighted up to date and appropriately approved 

BCP’s in place. BCP’s detail various performance 

measures including recovery time objectives for 

critical activities. 

 

Areas requiring improvement 

Page 92



Business Continuity Planning Review 
302CFRS_2223_004 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-4 Rev 1                                              7 

Sub Objective Key Themes 

 

• MIAA review of BC planning exercises highlighted 

a structured rolling programme of tabletop 

exercises (to be used to test each departmental 

plan over a three-year cycle) is in development.  

This was highlighted in our 2017/18 Business 

continuity review and has been developed for Joint 

Corporate Services. An overarching document to 

record the test and outcome of each BCP should be 

developed and assurances reported through to  

Risk Management Board – Medium  risk 

recommendation 1. 

 

• MIAA review of a master list of BCP’s in place for 

each service area and individual fire station 

localities highlighted 3 departments (Prevention, 

HR, and ICT and 2 Fire stations – Powey Lane and 

Lymm) did not have an agreed recently updated 

BCP in place. MIAA recommends the existing 

BCP’s are reviewed.  – Medium  risk 

recommendation 2.  

 

 

Cheshire Fire and Rescue 

Service participates in a range 

of Business Continuity 

Planning exercises and 

response plans which 

address different scenarios. 

The results of these exercises 

are documented, and lessons 

learnt are identified and 

actioned. 

Areas of good practice: 

 

• Dealing with the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic 

over the past couple of years has tested the 

continuity arrangements and resilience of CFRS 

and the wider public sector.   

• MIAA review of a sample of planning exercises 

including Covid interim debrief (Sept. 2020) and 

resulting action plans highlighted effective BC 

testing and identification of remedial actions to 

improve BC delivery.   

• MIAA detailed review of the BC planning exercise 

and interim debrief report for CFRS crisis 

management response to COVID highlighted the 

report considered specific areas relating to BC, 

including what worked well, what got in the way or 

limited CFRS effectiveness, what CFRS would do 

Page 93



Business Continuity Planning Review 
302CFRS_2223_004 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-4 Rev 1                                              8 

Sub Objective Key Themes 

differently in the event of a second wave, either 

locally or nationally and what are the key learning 

points.  

• Our incident management debrief report 21/22 

included recommendations for wider organisational 

learning and communication and we have therefore 

not raised any recommendations as part of this 

review. 

Training for staff meets the 

specific response needs of 

the Business Continuity 

Plan/Strategy. On-going 

training is provided to ensure 

that skills are maintained 

following updates to the 

plan/strategy. 

Areas of good practice 

 

• MIAA discussions with CFRS BCP leads confirmed 

adequate training is undertaken, evidence 

highlighted “Introduction to Business Continuity” 

certificate was in place. 

• MIAA review of current guidance highlighted 

awareness is supported by the CFRS Business 

Continuity guidance and protocol (available on-line 

as E-Doc 1130) is designed to provide managers 

across all departments and functions within CFRS 

with advice on developing BCM arrangements and 

plans. 

• MIAA discussions with CFRS BCP lead (Head of 

Operational Policy & Assurance) highlighted the ten 

Risk/BCP Champions have additional workshops to 

ensure they are all up to date with training. The last 

training conducted with the BCP Champions was 

Feb 2020 just prior to Covid19 pandemic. Refresher 

training is planned.   

 

Appropriate governance 

arrangements are in place to 

provide assurance to the Fire 

Authority and Senior 

Management Team on the 

adequacy of Business 

Continuity Planning. 

 

An accountable officer has 

been identified and nominated 

to be responsible for the co-

Areas of good practice 

 

• The Risk Management Board (RMB) has a 

responsibility for an annual review of the Crisis 

Management Plan, this is written into the Terms of 

Reference for the Board.   

• RMB meets twice a year and we confirmed there 

was an up-to-date terms of reference, last updated 

March 2022. MIAA review of March 2022 RMB 

minutes and papers highlighted annual review of 

Page 94



Business Continuity Planning Review 
302CFRS_2223_004 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-4 Rev 1                                              9 

Sub Objective Key Themes 

ordination and oversite of the 

Business Continuity Plan. 
the CFRS Crisis Management Plan.  RMB minutes 

are received by Fire Authority 

• Risk management arrangements within CFRS are 

supported by the Joint Planning, Performance and 

Risk team, who are part of the Joint Corporate 

Services function. 

• Additional oversight responsibility of individual 

BCP’s and compliance with CFRS BCP policies 

and procedure is delegated to departmental 

Information governance, risk and business 

continuity champions. 

• In relation to the Joint Corporate Services covered 

under the Blue Light Collaboration for joint 

corporate services e.g. IT, Estates, People, 

Finance. These services provided by the joint 

services are reviewed and discussed quarterly at 

Joint Services Management Board (JSMB).  

Business Continuity arrangements for Joint 

Corporate services are managed and reported 

under different arrangements. 

• The Performance and Overview Committee 

meeting on 8th Sept 2021 received an annual report 

covering the period (1st April 2020 to 31st March 

2021) on the performance of NWFC which included 

assurances in relation to business continuity.  

• Roles and responsibilities are clearly documented, 

the nominated accountable officer is the Chief Fire 

Officer. The BCP is reviewed twice a year and this 

review is signed off by the Deputy Chief Fire Officer. 

1.4 Recommendation Summary 

The table below summarises the prioritisation of recommendations in respect of this review. 

 

 

 

Critical High Medium Low Total 

0 0 2 1 3 

Page 95



Business Continuity Planning Review 
302CFRS_2223_004 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-4 Rev 1                                              10 

2 Engagement Objectives and Scope (Terms of Reference) 

2.1 Objective 

Sub Objective Risk 

• A formal risk assessment exists for each 

provided service that directly takes Business 

Continuity Planning into consideration. 

 

• No formal risk assessments are in place or 

their risk assessments do not directly 

consider Business Continuity Planning. 

 

• Overarching Strategy in place for Business 

Continuity planning which sets out roles and 

responsibilities. 

 

• Failure to provide a Business Continuity 

Plan that sets out how Cheshire Fire and 

Rescue Service will plan for, respond to 

and recover from a significant incident or 

loss of services. 

 

• A Business Continuity Plan in place that sets 

out how it will plan for, respond to and recover 

from a significant incident or loss of services. 

The response plan has been approved, is up to 

date and reviewed on a regular basis. 

 

• The plan is not reviewed/updated to reflect 

national guidance or change in 

circumstances 

• Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service participates 

in a range of Business Continuity Planning 

exercises and response plans which address 

different scenarios. The results of these 

exercises are documented and lessons learnt 

are identified and actioned; 

 

• Failure to participate in Business Continuity 

Planning exercises and response plans for 

different scenarios. Lessons learnt are not 

identified or actioned. 

 

• Business Continuity Plans are in place which 

are reviewed, tested and updated on a regular 

basis; 

 

• Business Continuity Plans are not in place 

at a departmental or corporate level; 

 

• Training for staff meets the specific response 

needs of the Business Continuity 

Plan/Strategy. On-going training is provided to 

ensure that skills are maintained following 

updates to the plan/strategy;  

• Inadequate training for staff that does not 

meet the requirements outlined in the 

Business Continuity Plan. 

 

• There are appropriate Business Continuity 

arrangements in place for all sites. 

 

• The Business Continuity Plan does not 

provide adequate consideration for all sites 

or where CFRS is reliant upon another 

service e.g. North West Fire Control. 

Page 96



Business Continuity Planning Review 
302CFRS_2223_004 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-4 Rev 1                                              11 

• An accountable officer has been identified and 

nominated to be responsible for the co-

ordination and oversite of the Business 

Continuity Plan. 

 

• Lack of accountability and oversight. 

• Appropriate governance arrangements are in 

place to provide assurance to the Fire Authority 

and Senior Management Team on the 

adequacy of Business Continuity Planning. 

• Governance, oversight and reporting 

arrangements are unclear and ineffective. 

 

2.2 Scope 

MIAA considered any changes to the control environment due to COVID-19.   

The limitations to scope were as follows: 

• The scope of this review was to focus on the objectives described above and the controls 

in operation at Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service. 

• The review also included the assurance arrangements for BCP within North West Fire 

Control. 

• MIAA reviewed the arrangements for the service as a whole and a sample of services to 

be chosen by MIAA. 

3 Detailed Findings and Recommendations 

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, 

only those areas of weakness in control or examples of lapses in control identified from our 

testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

 

1. Rolling 3-year programme to review 

departmental BCP’s 

Risk Rating: Medium 

 Operating effectiveness  

Key Finding – MIAA review of BC planning exercises highlighted a structured rolling 

programme of tabletop exercises (to be used to test each departmental plan over a three-

year cycle) is in development. This was highlighted in our 2017/18 Business continuity 

review and has been developed for Joint Corporate Services. An overarching document to 

record the BCP owner, update, test, outcome and learning of each BCP should be 

developed and assurances reported via Risk Management Board. 

Specific Risk – Departmental plans are out of date and do not accurately reflect current 

agreed BCP arrangements. 

Page 97



Business Continuity Planning Review 
302CFRS_2223_004 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-4 Rev 1                                              12 

Recommendation – MIAA recommends the development of the structured 3 rolling plan is 

developed and assurances reported to Risk Management Board. 

Management Response - Recommendation is noted, work underway to develop and 

implement this structure. 

Responsible Officer – SM Tony McCourt 

Implementation Date – 31st March 2023 

 

2. Up to date department and fire station 

BCPs are in place 

Risk Rating: Medium 

 Operating effectiveness  

Key Finding – MIAA review of master list of BCP’s in place for each service area and 

individual fire station localities currently highlighted 3 departments (Prevention, HR, and 

ICT and 2 Fire stations – Powey Lane and Lymm) did not have an agreed recently updated 

BCP in place. It should be noted that after the Final report was issued MIAA were 

provided with a copy of the BCP for HR and ICT joint corporate services. 

Specific Risk – Departmental plans are out of date and do not accurately reflect current 

agreed BCP arrangements. 

Recommendation – MIAA recommends the existing BCP’s are reviewed, and the 

spreadsheet updated. 

Management Response - Recommendation is noted. Full review will be carried out and 

records updated. 

Responsible Officer – SM Tony McCourt 

Implementation Date – 31st March 2023 

 

3. Availability of BCP on website. Risk Rating: Low 

 Operating effectiveness  

Page 98



Business Continuity Planning Review 
302CFRS_2223_004 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-4 Rev 1                                              13 

Key Finding – The current BC policy requires non-confidential aspects of the BC plan are 

published on the CFRS intranet, MIAA review of the CFRS website highlighted the BC plan 

is not currently available.  

Specific Risk – Non compliance with current BC policy. 

Recommendation – MIAA recommends non confidential details are published on the 

intranet and CFRS website. 

Management Response - Recommendation is noted. Non -confidential details will be 

identified for publication. 

Responsible Officer – SM – Tony McCourt 

Implementation Date – 31st March 2023 

 

 

Follow-up 

A follow-up exercise will be undertaken during 2023 to evaluate progress made in respect of 

issues raised.  This will include obtaining documentary evidence to demonstrate that actions 

agreed as part of this review have been implemented. 

  

Page 99



Business Continuity Planning Review 
302CFRS_2223_004 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-4 Rev 1                                              14 

Appendix A: Assurance Definitions and Risk Classifications 

Level of Assurance Description 

High There is a strong system of internal control which has been effectively 
designed to meet the system objectives, and that controls are consistently 
applied in all areas reviewed. 

Substantial There is a good system of internal control designed to meet the system 
objectives, and that controls are generally being applied consistently.  

Moderate There is an adequate system of internal control, however, in some areas 
weaknesses in design and/or inconsistent application of controls puts the 
achievement of some aspects of the system objectives at risk. 

Limited There is a compromised system of internal control as weaknesses in the 
design and/or inconsistent application of controls puts the achievement of 
the system objectives at risk. 

No There is an inadequate system of internal control as weaknesses in 
control, and/or consistent non-compliance with controls could/has resulted 
in failure to achieve the system objectives. 

 

 

Risk Rating Assessment Rationale 

Critical Control weakness that could have a significant impact upon, not only the 
system, function or process objectives but also the achievement of the 
organisation’s objectives in relation to: 

• the efficient and effective use of resources 

• the safeguarding of assets 

• the preparation of reliable financial and operational information 

• compliance with laws and regulations. 

High Control weakness that has or could have a significant impact upon the 
achievement of key system, function or process objectives.  This 
weakness, whilst high impact for the system, function or process does not 
have a significant impact on the achievement of the overall organisation 
objectives. 

Medium Control weakness that: 

• has a low impact on the achievement of the key system, function or 
process objectives; 

• has exposed the system, function or process to a key risk, however 
the likelihood of this risk occurring is low. 

Low Control weakness that does not impact upon the achievement of key 
system, function or process objectives; however implementation of the 
recommendation would improve overall control. 

 

 

Page 100



CHESHIRE FIRE AUTHORITY 

MEETING OF: AUDIT COMMITTEE 
DATE: 16 NOVEMBER 2022 
REPORT OF: TREASURER 
AUTHOR: PAUL VAUGHAN 

 

SUBJECT: INTERNAL AUDIT – PROGRESS REPORT 
QUARTER 2 2022-23 

Purpose of Report 

1. The report presents the Internal Audit Progress Report Quarter 2 2022-23 for 
Member consideration. 

Recommended: That Members 

[1] note the Internal Audit Progress Report Quarter 2 2022-23.  

Background 

2. The Authority is required under statute to have an internal audit function. It has 
engaged Mersey Internal Audit Agency (MIAA) to carry out this function on its 
behalf. 

Information 

3. In accordance with the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23, MIAA has 
prepared a report on progress against the plan at Quarter 2.  
 

4. The report is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. A member of the MIAA team 
will attend the meeting to present the report to Members.  

 
 Financial Implications 
5. There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Legal Implications 

6. There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

7.  There are no equality and diversity implications arising from this report.  

Environmental Implications 

Page 101

Agenda Item 8



10.    There are no environment implications arising from this report. 

 
CONTACT: DONNA LINTON, GOVERNANCE CORPORATE PLANNING 
MANAGER 
TEL [01606] 868604 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS:   
Information provided by Mersey Internal Audit Agency (MIAA) 

Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Progress Report. 
  
  

Page 102



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
Audit Committee (November 2022) 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

 
 

  

Page 103



Audit Committee Progress Report (Nov 2022) 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-6 Rev 1                                                  2                          

 

Contents 
1 Introduction 

2 Key Messages for Performance and Overview Committee Attention 

 

Appendix A: Contract Performance 

Appendix B: Performance Indicators 

 

Your Team 

 

Limitations  

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during our internal 

audit work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that 

exist, or of all the improvements that may be required. Whilst every care has been taken to 

ensure that the information in this report is as accurate as possible, based on the information 

provided and documentation reviewed, no complete guarantee or warranty can be given with 

regards to the advice and information contained herein. Our work does not provide absolute 

assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not exist.   

Responsibility for a sound system of internal controls and the prevention and detection of 

fraud and other irregularities rests with management and work performed by internal audit 

should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses in internal controls, nor 

relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity. Effective and timely 

implementation of our recommendations by management is important for the maintenance of 

a reliable internal control system.  

Reports prepared by MIAA are prepared for your sole use and no responsibility is taken by 

MIAA or the auditors to any director or officer in their individual capacity. No responsibility to 

any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, 

Name Role Contact Details 

Anne-marie Harrop Engagement Lead Anne-marie.harrop@miaa.nhs.uk  

07920 150313 

Page 104



Audit Committee Progress Report (Nov 2022) 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-6 Rev 1                                                  3                          

any other purpose and a person who is not a party to the agreement for the provision of 

Internal Audit and shall not have any rights under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 

1999.  

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

Our work was completed in accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  

Page 105



Audit Committee Progress Report (Nov 2022) 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-6 Rev 1                                                  4                          

1 Introduction 

 

2 Key Messages for Audit Committee Attention  

2021/22 Audit 
Reviews 

The following reports have been finalised: 

• Business Continuity Planning 

The following review is in progress: 

• Key Financial Controls & Reserves review  

 

Follow Up An update on progress in taking forward prior year audit 

recommendations was provided to the committee in June 2022.   

Audit Plan Changes We have received a request to defer two reviews:   

• Blue Light Collaboration until Q4 – At the request of the 

Treasurer in light of an internal review on the future of the 

collaboration. 

• Microsoft 365 delivery – At the request of the Treasurer to 

defer this review to next years audit plan 2023/24. 

 

Insights 

 

Briefings 

Our latest briefings/blogs are: 

 

This report provides an update to the Audit Committee in respect of the progress made against 

the Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23 and brings to your attention matters relevant to your 

responsibilities as members of the Committee. 

This progress report provides a summary of Internal Audit activity and complies with the 

requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.   

Comprehensive reports detailing findings, recommendations and agreed actions are provided 

to the organisation, and are available to Committee Members on request. In addition, a 

consolidated follow up position is reported on a periodic basis to the Audit Committee.   

This progress report covers the period Sept 2022 to October 2022. 

Since the last meeting of the Committee, there has been focus on the following areas: 

Page 106



Audit Committee Progress Report (Nov 2022) 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-6 Rev 1                                                  5                          

• Key NHS Publications - September 2022 

• Our Executive Director - Assurance, Louise Cobain explains why 

internal audit is so important for ensuring success for ICBs in her 

latest blog for HFMA: Internal audit: at the heart of system 

success (hfma.org.uk) 

• Interns report on their year at MIAA 

• How can strength-based working lead to healthier and happier 

communities? 

• MIAA 2022/23 Checklist Series - Place Governance 

 

Audit Committee Chairs Webinars 

We are continuing to hold webinars with groups of NHS / Client Audit 

Committee Chairs focusing upon governance challenges and other 

key issues.  

Collaborative Masterclass Events 

• Digital as Disrupter (24th November 2022) 

• The Psychology of Leading High Performance Teams (8th 

December 2022) 

• Leading for Social Justice and Health Equality (2nd February 

2023) 

 

 

  

Page 107

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.miaa.nhs.uk%2Ftian-news-september-2022%2F&data=05%7C01%7CAnne-Marie.Harrop%40miaa.nhs.uk%7C573c75dc1ba64cd6815d08dab02b80e8%7C88de16a87a434db4bb50a40cf75a9e95%7C0%7C0%7C638015998131482422%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=jHeHevTmR0h39yVKFlnbKHZB4jDtk4whvmZXk2y8kf0%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.hfma.org.uk%2Fnews%2Fblogs%2Fblog-post%2Finternal-audit-at-the-heart-of-system-success&data=05%7C01%7CAnne-Marie.Harrop%40miaa.nhs.uk%7C573c75dc1ba64cd6815d08dab02b80e8%7C88de16a87a434db4bb50a40cf75a9e95%7C0%7C0%7C638015998131638666%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zAdPtTQnTfBd1ufJyEO%2FK0M%2FI5Qg8werd643xTxY6OI%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.hfma.org.uk%2Fnews%2Fblogs%2Fblog-post%2Finternal-audit-at-the-heart-of-system-success&data=05%7C01%7CAnne-Marie.Harrop%40miaa.nhs.uk%7C573c75dc1ba64cd6815d08dab02b80e8%7C88de16a87a434db4bb50a40cf75a9e95%7C0%7C0%7C638015998131638666%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zAdPtTQnTfBd1ufJyEO%2FK0M%2FI5Qg8werd643xTxY6OI%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.miaa.nhs.uk%2Finterns-report-on-their-year-at-miaa%2F&data=05%7C01%7CAnne-Marie.Harrop%40miaa.nhs.uk%7C573c75dc1ba64cd6815d08dab02b80e8%7C88de16a87a434db4bb50a40cf75a9e95%7C0%7C0%7C638015998131638666%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=RjreZ%2BAhX%2Fn5lN%2FbzBp1ac4TlXHMU0PSjTYq7qQj7XQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.miaa.nhs.uk%2Fhow-can-strength-based-working-lead-to-healthier-and-happier-communities%2F&data=05%7C01%7CAnne-Marie.Harrop%40miaa.nhs.uk%7C573c75dc1ba64cd6815d08dab02b80e8%7C88de16a87a434db4bb50a40cf75a9e95%7C0%7C0%7C638015998131638666%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ePXM9DxDhVaqhkYLXUKKp0t6RVKrYYC%2BqoU2deCj458%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.miaa.nhs.uk%2Fhow-can-strength-based-working-lead-to-healthier-and-happier-communities%2F&data=05%7C01%7CAnne-Marie.Harrop%40miaa.nhs.uk%7C573c75dc1ba64cd6815d08dab02b80e8%7C88de16a87a434db4bb50a40cf75a9e95%7C0%7C0%7C638015998131638666%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ePXM9DxDhVaqhkYLXUKKp0t6RVKrYYC%2BqoU2deCj458%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.miaa.nhs.uk%2Fmiaa-2022-2023-checklist-series-place-governance%2F&data=05%7C01%7CAnne-Marie.Harrop%40miaa.nhs.uk%7C573c75dc1ba64cd6815d08dab02b80e8%7C88de16a87a434db4bb50a40cf75a9e95%7C0%7C0%7C638015998131638666%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=f8eocuolbDyZpQH%2BBIYQZVwW3dtf7QxtPApx0Bj3D9U%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.eventbrite.co.uk%2Fe%2Fdigital-as-disruptor-tickets-262509000487&data=05%7C01%7CAnne-Marie.Harrop%40miaa.nhs.uk%7C53cdef42b5bb4ef820e808da64ae63ec%7C88de16a87a434db4bb50a40cf75a9e95%7C0%7C0%7C637932997400971916%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Ch8Smq6PMTfg9toFLMYfAyBPm6Dc8Elsn0dXmEXBq2w%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.eventbrite.co.uk%2Fe%2Fthe-psychology-of-leading-high-performance-teams-tickets-293166006417&data=05%7C01%7CAnne-Marie.Harrop%40miaa.nhs.uk%7C53cdef42b5bb4ef820e808da64ae63ec%7C88de16a87a434db4bb50a40cf75a9e95%7C0%7C0%7C637932997400971916%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=S3SuZZ7SJd6vbJc99ULlT4mVZ9so3TW1rE8uGX3yCaM%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.eventbrite.co.uk%2Fe%2Fthe-psychology-of-leading-high-performance-teams-tickets-293166006417&data=05%7C01%7CAnne-Marie.Harrop%40miaa.nhs.uk%7C53cdef42b5bb4ef820e808da64ae63ec%7C88de16a87a434db4bb50a40cf75a9e95%7C0%7C0%7C637932997400971916%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=S3SuZZ7SJd6vbJc99ULlT4mVZ9so3TW1rE8uGX3yCaM%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.eventbrite.co.uk%2Fe%2Fleading-for-social-justice-and-health-equality-tickets-262483343747&data=05%7C01%7CAnne-Marie.Harrop%40miaa.nhs.uk%7C573c75dc1ba64cd6815d08dab02b80e8%7C88de16a87a434db4bb50a40cf75a9e95%7C0%7C0%7C638015998131638666%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7E4kia7a7rEdwo%2FiKsQZyFxhXYTFdNnZkPw%2B7wEwqmc%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.eventbrite.co.uk%2Fe%2Fleading-for-social-justice-and-health-equality-tickets-262483343747&data=05%7C01%7CAnne-Marie.Harrop%40miaa.nhs.uk%7C573c75dc1ba64cd6815d08dab02b80e8%7C88de16a87a434db4bb50a40cf75a9e95%7C0%7C0%7C638015998131638666%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7E4kia7a7rEdwo%2FiKsQZyFxhXYTFdNnZkPw%2B7wEwqmc%3D&reserved=0


Audit Committee Progress Report (Nov 2022) 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-6 Rev 1                                                  6                          

Appendix A: Contract Performance   

Audit Plan 2022/23 
 

HOIA Opinion Area Status Assurance Level 

Core/ Mandated Assurances 

Risk Based Assurances 

Follow Up 

 
  

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) state that ‘The chief audit executive 

must deliver an annual internal audit opinion and report that can be used by the organisation 

to inform its governance statement.’   

 

Key Financial Controls (including 

Reserves) 

In progress  

Risk Management Board Q 1 - 4 N/A 

Business Continuity Complete Significant 

Blue Light Collaboration Q4   

Microsoft 365 Delivery Request to defer to 

23/24  

 

Qtr 1 Complete N/A 

Qtr 4 Q4 N/A 

Page 108



Audit Committee Progress Report (Nov 2022) 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

                         QD-6 Rev 1                                                  7                          

Appendix B: Performance Indicators 

The primary measure of your internal auditor’s performance is the outputs deriving from 

work undertaken.  The following provides performance indicator information to support the 

Committee in assessing the performance of Internal Audit. 

Element Reporting 

Regularity 

Status Summary  

Delivery of the Head of 

Internal Audit Opinion 

(Progress against Plan) 

Each Audit 

Committee 
Green 

There is ongoing engagement and 

communications regarding delivery 

of key reviews to support the Head 

of Internal Audit Opinion.   

Issue a Client Satisfaction 

Questionnaire following 

completion of every audit. 

Every 

Report 
Green 

No issues reported 

Percentage of 

recommendations which 

are implemented 

Twice per 

year 
Green 

Follow up reports are provided 

twice per year. 

Qualified Staff Annual 
Green 

MIAA have a highly qualified and 

diverse workforce which includes 

75% qualified staff.  The Senior 

Team delivering the Internal Audit 

Service are CCAB/IIA qualified.   

Quality Annual 
Green 

MIAA operate systems to ISO 

Quality Standards. The External 

Quality Assessment, undertaken by 

CIPFA, provides assurance of 

MIAA’s compliance with the Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards.  

MIAA conforms with the Public 

Sector Internal Audit Code of 

Ethics.   

 

 

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Internal Audit - role, Annual Plan and update
	CFRS Internal Audit Plan 22-23 Final Approved by Fire Authority 27 April 22
	��Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service�Internal Audit Plan (FINAL) approved by Fire Authority 27th April 2022�2022/2023
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8


	4 External Audit - role, Annual Plan and update
	Cheshire Fire  Rescue Service Audit Findings Report 2021-22 - to Authority meeting

	5 Future Work Programme of the Committee
	7 Internal Audit Report - Business Continuity Planning Review
	MIAA CFRS Business Continuity audit Final Report

	8 Internal Audit - Progress Report Quarter 2 2022-23
	MIAA CFRS Progress Report 22-23


